
 
                

Page 1 of 3 
 

DBID OPEN BOARD OF 
TRUSTEES MEETING 
 
Date: April 15, 2025 

Time: 7:00 p.m.  

 

                                                    

                                                          OPEN AGENDA 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

The Chair will call the meeting to order and respectfully acknowledge the Qualicum First 
Nation on whose traditional territory this meeting takes place. 

B. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 

1. Motion:  

That the Board approve the March 18, 2025, Regular Open Session minutes as 
circulated. 

C. ITEMS COMING OUT OF CLOSED SESSION 

None 

D. INTRODUCTION OF LATE ITEMS 

 
 

E. BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES and UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

1. Flag Pole discussion 

F. PETITIONS and DELEGATIONS 

None 

G. CORRESPONDENCE 

None 

H. REPORTS  

1. March 2025 - Water Operator’s Reports 

Recommendation: 

THAT the March 2025 Water Operator’s Report be received for information. 

 

1 / 54



 
                

Page 2 of 3 
 

DBID OPEN BOARD OF 
TRUSTEES MEETING 
 
Date: April 15, 2025 

Time: 7:00 p.m.  

 

 

2. March 2025 - Fire Chief’s Report 

Recommendation: 

THAT the March 2025 Fire Chief’s Report be received for information. 

 

3. Financial Reports 

a. Total cheques issued for Water Department for March 2025: $38,107.06 

b. Total cheques issued for Fire Department for March 2025: $4,232.38 

Recommendation: 

THAT the March cheque registers be received for information. 

 

4.  Quarterly Financial Reports 

Recommendation: 

THAT the Quarterly Financial Reports for the period January 1, 2025 to March 31, 2025 
be received for information. 

I. BYLAWS 

Recommendation: 

THAT the Board accept the registered copy of Bylaw No. 268  “Meeting Procedures 
Bylaw” received from the Ministry of Housing and Municipal Affairs. 

 

J. RESOLUTIONS 

 None 

K. NEW BUSINESS 

1. 2022 Annual Water System Report 

Recommendation: 

THAT the Board accept the 2022 Annual Water System Report for information and 
direct staff to forward to VIHA. 

2 / 54



 
                

Page 3 of 3 
 

DBID OPEN BOARD OF 
TRUSTEES MEETING 
 
Date: April 15, 2025 

Time: 7:00 p.m.  

 

 

 
2. 2023 Annual Water System Report 

Recommendation: 

THAT the Board accept the 2023 Annual Water System Report for information and direct 
staff to forward to VIHA. 

L. ADJOURNMENT 

THAT the Board adjourn into closed session pursuant to section 90(1)(c), 90(1)(k), and 
90(2)(c) of the Community Charter to discuss matters that are related to 
employee relations and other human resources matters, and the approval of 
minutes for a closed session of a committee or Board meeting, if necessary. 

3 / 54



DBID BOARD OF TRUSTEES OPEN 
MEETING 

Date: March 18, 2025 

      

Page 1 of 5 

 
OPEN SESSION MINUTES 

 
 
PRESENT: 
Colin Thompson, Chair 
Alissa Woodward 
Diane Koch (remote) 
Craig Kerstens 
Christo Kuun 
Suzanne LaRoy 
 
STAFF:  
John Marsh - Administrator 
Janine Sibley - Assistant Admin 
 
GUESTS:  
Adam Norman – Core Water Management 
Cory Vanderhorst – MNP Auditors 

 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

The meeting was called to order at 7:00 PM. 
The Chair respectfully acknowledged the Qualicum First Nation on whose traditional 
territory this meeting takes place. 

The chair invited John Marsh to read a statement that he had written to the Board and 
members of the public. 

March 18, 2025 Letter from John Marsh 

MOVED by Trustee Thompson 

SECONDED by Trustee Kuun 

THAT the Board accept the March 18, 2025 Letter from John Marsh as 
correspondence in to be entered into the minutes. 

Unanimous CARRIED 

B. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 

February 18, 2025 Regular Open Session Minutes 

MOVED by Trustee Thompson 

SECONDED by Trustee Kuun 

THAT the Board approve the February 18, 2025 Regular Open Session Minutes as 
circulated. 

Unanimous CARRIED 

4 / 54



DBID BOARD OF TRUSTEES OPEN 
MEETING 

Date: March 18, 2025 

      

Page 2 of 5 

 

 

C. ITEMS COMING OUT OF CLOSED SESSION 

February 18, 2025 Closed Session Meeting Minutes 

MOVED by Trustee Thompson 

SECONDED by Trustee Kerstens 

THAT the Board approve the February 18, 2025 Closed Session Meeting Minutes as 
circulated. 

Unanimous CARRIED 

D. INTRODUCTION OF LATE ITEMS 

2. E.1 Update on status of filing Bylaw No. 268 with municipal affairs 

3. E.2 AGM discussion on dates 

4. K.3 UBCM grant 

 

E. BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES + UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

1. Update on status of filing Bylaw No. 268 with municipal affairs, action item for 
Administrator to follow up and confirm. 

 

F. PETITIONS & DELEGATIONS 

1. MNP Auditors - Cory Vanderhorst, DBID 2024 Financial audit 

MOVED by Trustee Koch 

SECONDED by Trustee Kuun 

THAT the Board Receive and Approve the 2024 financial statements as presented by 
MNP.  

Unanimous CARRIED 

 

2. Mary Martin - The Canada Community Building Fund Discussion on potential grant 
opportunities. 

 

 

 

5 / 54



DBID BOARD OF TRUSTEES OPEN 
MEETING 

Date: March 18, 2025 

      

Page 3 of 5 

 

G. CORRESPONDENCE 

Steve Arstad, Board Chair, Kaleden Irrigation District, March 6, 2024, Proposed Class Action 
Lawsuit against the Province of BC. 

MOVED by Trustee Thompson 

SECONDED by Trustee Koch 

THAT the Board is in support of the concept of the discriminatory and unfair 
treatment against improvement and irrigation districts for restricting our ability to 
access lower interest loans and grant funding. However, before making a decision 
on moving forward we await a decision on the estimated legal fees and what DBID’s 
portion is proposed to be.  

Unanimous CARRIED 

H. REPORTS 

1. February 2025 Water Operator’s Report 

MOVED by Trustee Thompson 

SECONDED by Trustee LaRoy 

THAT the February 2025 Water Operator’s Report be received for information. 

Unanimous CARRIED  

2. February 2025 Fire Chief’s Report 

MOVED by Trustee Thompson 

SECONDED by Trustee Kuun 

THAT the February 2025 Fire Chief’s Report be received for information. 

Unanimous CARRIED 

MOVED by Trustee LaRoy 

SECONDED by Trustee Woodward 

THAT before the next Board meeting, move forward to find out the cost to fix or 
replace the Flag pole and bring a cost proposal and scope of work to vote on. 

Unanimous CARRIED 

 

3. Financial Reports 

a. Total cheques issued for Water Department for February 2025: $111,335.98 

b. Total cheques issued for Fire Department for February 2025: $3,854.71 

6 / 54



DBID BOARD OF TRUSTEES OPEN 
MEETING 

Date: March 18, 2025 

      

Page 4 of 5 

 

MOVED by Trustee Thompson 

SECONDED by Trustee Kerstens 

THAT the February 2025 cheque registers be received for information. 

Unanimous CARRIED 

 

4. Thompson Clarke West update - Trustee Kerstens verbal report 

MOVED by Trustee Koch 

SECONDED by Trustee Kuun 

THAT the TCW verbal update from Trustee Kerstens be accepted for information. 

Unanimous CARRIED   

I. BYLAWS 

None 

J. RESOLUTIONS 

None 

K. NEW BUSINESS 

1. DBID Draft April Pipeline newsletter for review 

MOVED by Trustee LaRoy 

SECONDED by Trustee Kuun 

THAT the Board approve the Draft April Pipeline with the suggested amendments of 
changing the meeting facility name from the DBID Firehall to DBID Boardroom for all 
references on the Pipeline and the website and also increase the visibility of the 
water conservation statement. 

Unanimous CARRIED 

 

2.   AGM Date 

MOVED by Trustee LaRoy 

SECONDED by Trustee Woodward 

THAT the DBID AGM be held on May 15, 2025 at 7:00 pm at the Lighthouse 
Community Centre, 240 Lions way, Qualicum Bay. 

Unanimous CARRIED 

7 / 54



DBID BOARD OF TRUSTEES OPEN 
MEETING 

Date: March 18, 2025 

      

Page 5 of 5 

 

 

3.   UBCM 2024 CEPF Volunteer and Composite Fire Department Equipment and 
Training Grant 

MOVED by Trustee Thompson 

SECONDED by Trustee Woodward 

THAT the Board receive the UBCM Grant contribution of a $40,000 equipment and 
training grant as correspondence in and ask staff to send a letter of appreciation to 
the UBCM Board. 

Unanimous CARRIED 

4. DBID Code of Conduct Policy  

MOVED by Trustee Thompson 

SECONDED by Trustee LaRoy 

THAT the Board approve in principal the Deep Bay Improvement District Code of 
Conduct Policy 25-03-18 and direct staff to substitute city with Improvement 
District terminology such as Trustee vs City and other necessary minor edits. 

Unanimous CARRIED 

L. QUESTION PERIOD - Questions were asked by members of the gallery in relation to the 
following topics: 

• TCW written report for the AGM 
• TCW pipe ravine, environmental liability assessment 

M.  ADJOURNMENT 

MOVED by Trustee Thompson 

SECONDED by Trustee Kerstens 

 THAT the Board adjourns the meeting.    

Unanimous CARRIED 

 

The meeting adjourned at 8:46 pm 

 

                       

Chair of the Trustees                    Corporate Officer  

8 / 54



Deep Bay Improvement District  
Water System Report 

 
 
Report for: March 1, 2025 - March 31, 2025  

 Total Water 
Pumped 
(m3) 

Total 
Runtime 
(Hrs) 

Total 
Starts 

Well #8 4599 131.64 71 

Well #6 2739 98.36 71 

Well #5 1929 66 71 

Well #4 241 14.83 39 

Well #3 0 0 0 

Well #2 0 0 0 

Well #1 0 0 0 

 
 
Total water pumped = 9,508 m3 
 
 
2025-03-01   

2025-03-02   

2025-03-03   

2025-03-04 Flushed blow off at the end of Deep Bay Drive for 15 minutes. AN 

2025-03-05 Rounds. Sampled reservoir and Gainsberg side. AN 

2025-03-06   

2025-03-07   

2025-03-08   

2025-03-09   

2025-03-10 

Rounds. Sampled reservoir and Jamison side. Flushed water through the 
hydrant at the end of Maple guard and the blow off at the end of Thompson 
Clarke AN 

2025-03-11   

2025-03-12   

2025-03-13   

9 / 54



2025-03-14   

2025-03-15   

2025-03-16   

2025-03-17   

2025-03-18 

Flushed water at the end of Deep Bay Dr. White pacific addressed the issue and 
well 4 and so I went to flush it before putting it on line. Unfortunately the issue 
was not fully fixed so we will continue diagnosing. Monthly Trustees meeting. AN 

2025-03-19 Rounds. Sampled Gainsberg side and reservoir. AN 

2025-03-20   

2025-03-21   

2025-03-22   

2025-03-23   

2025-03-24   

2025-03-25 Rounds. Flushed and sampled Jamison side and reservoir. AN 

2025-03-26   

2025-03-27   

2025-03-28   

2025-03-29   

2025-03-30   

2025-03-31   

 
 
 
  
​ ​ ​  

 

10 / 54



Deep Bay Volunteer Fire Department 

 

March 2025 Chief’s Report 

 

If you are looking to get a burn permit please check with the improvement district 
office, phone or email the fire department. 

I would like to invite those interested in serving the community as a fire fighter, first 
responder to join us. This is a very satisfying way to help people in their time of need. I would 
encourage you to join our phenomenal group of volunteers. We train Monday evening 6:30 till 
9:00 (except long weekends) contact us at deepbayfire@dbid.ca or just show up.  

 
The society had their bottle drive on March 29,2025 with a good turnout for help, to 

those who were able to be there thank you. We are uncertain of the amount of money this one 
raised yet, but I will post it as soon as I find out. 

 
Though announced at the March board meeting we received a $40,000.00 grant for 

some equipment and training. These are specific items that the money is allocated toward 
some of which has already been ordered with estimated delivery on most of the equipment by 
the end of May. 

 
We are hoping to see action taken on the repairs or replacement of the flagpole soon. 
 
A thank you to Robert Hale for the construction of the rolling tables for the fire hall. This 

makes maintenance on equipment much easier for the members. 
 
If you have any questions or concerns, please send an email to deepbayfire@dbid.ca 

and we will address your questions or concerns. 
  

Thank You 

Chief George Lenz 

DBVFD 

11 / 54



2025 
Jan

2025 
Feb

2025 
Mar

2025 
April

2025 
May

2025 
June

2025 
July

2025 
Aug

2025 
Sept

2025 
Oct

2025 
Nov

2025 
Dec

2025 
YTD

# Structural fires 1 0 0 1

# Other fire calls 0 0 0 0

# Motor Vehicle 
Incidents

2 5 1 8

# First responder 
calls

3 4 8 15

# Miscellaneous 
calls

0 0 0 0

Safety
# Worksafe related 

incidents
0 0 1 1

Total calls 6 9 10 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 25

Chief:
# Active officers       

(not incl Chief):
# Other active 

members (not in 
officer role):

Total # - Active 
Members:

Target range 
optimal:

# Members fully 
qualified as interior 

& exterior 
firefighters

# Members fully 
qualified as exterior 
firefighters, interior 

firefighting in 
progress

# Members fully 
qualified as exterior 

firefighters 

# Members in 
training for exterior 

firefighting 
# New members: no 

training

# Instructors 
qualified to train for 

interior & exterior 
operations level "in-

house"

# Instructors 
qualified to train 

ONLY to exterior 
operations level "in-

house"

# Competency 
evaluators "in-

house"

4th Quarter

Deep Bay Fire 
Department

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

:

1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter

A
c

ti
v

e
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
h

ip
: 1

5

16

22 0 0 0

30 30 30 30

F
ir

e
fi

g
h

te
rs

:
(n

o
 m

em
b

er
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e 

c
o

u
n

te
d

 t
w

ic
e

 i
n

 t
h

is
 s

e
c

ti
o

n
)

3

10

0

7

2

In
s

tr
u

c
to

rs
 &

 E
v

a
lu

a
to

rs
:

4

0

3

# Certified as first 
responders

8 12 / 54



DBID - Waterworks
Cheque Log for 1020 Bank Credit Union/WD from 01/03/2025 to 31/03/2025
 Cheque No.  Payee  Amount
4681 Core Water Management Ltd. 5,147.33 
4682 Nina LeBlanc (mileage as per agreement) 45.00 
4683 White Pacific Automation 1,674.75 
4684 MNP LLP 10,749.38 
4685 Leuco Construction Inc 3,618.51 
4686 James Moller (1 1/2 month phone as per agreement) 75.00 
4687 Denise Coghill 480.00 
4688 Janine Sibley (phone as per agreement) 50.00 
4689 Heath Law LLP 247.50 
4690 John Marsh (Elementor subsription, website) 236.83 
OBP-238229645 Municipal Pension Plan 1,161.86 
OBP-234542112 Municipal Pension Plan 768.85 
OBP-959206 Receiver General 2,994.33 
OBP-916206 ADT Security Services 185.66 
OBP-914106 Waste Connections of Canada Inc 275.54 
OBP-815406 Rogers (Shaw) 191.73 
OBP-767506 BC Hydro 2,101.59 
OBP-658406 BC Hydro 140.15 
OBP-599306 BC Hydro 197.03 
OBP-421406 BC Hydro 320.39 
OBP-355106 BC Hydro 52.99 
OBP-264406 BC Hydro 121.77 
OBP-114906 BC Hydro 761.51 

Waterworks cheque Log March 2025 $31,597.70
Employee Deposits March 2025 $6,509.36
Total Waterworks March 2025 $38,107.06

DBID - Fire Protection
Cheque Log for 1030 Credit Union from 01/03/2025 to 31/03/2025
 Cheque No.  Payee  Amount
3856 Central Island Truck and Trailer Ltd. 288.75 
3857 Comox Firefighters Association 550.00 
3858 Minister of Finance 206.65 
3859 1309894 BC Ltd (Canco 150) 374.57 
3860 Rob Cottrell - Replacement cheque 22.04 
3861 1309894 BC Ltd (Canco 150) - Replacement cheque 156.56 
3862 Comtech Solutions 472.50 
3863 Don Coghill 57.09 
3864 Associated Fire Safety Equipment 1,515.94 
3865 Emergency Services Marketing (I am Responding) 449.02 
OBP-624701 Telus Mobility 84.00 
OBP-592401 TELUS Communications 55.26 

Fire cheque log March 2025 $4,232.38

Generated On: 08/04/2025

Generated On: 08/04/2025

13 / 54



14
 / 

54



15
 / 

54



16
 / 

54



17
 / 

54



18
 / 

54



19
 / 

54



20
 / 

54



21
 / 

54



22
 / 

54



23
 / 

54



24
 / 

54



25
 / 

54



26
 / 

54



27
 / 

54



28
 / 

54



29
 / 

54



30
 / 

54



31
 / 

54



32
 / 

54



33
 / 

54



5031 Mountainview Road  Phone/Fax: 250-757-9312 
Bowser, BC   V0R 1G0  www.dbid.ca 

 
 
 
 

DEEP BAY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
 
 

ANNUAL WATER SYSTEM  
REPORT 2022 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

34 / 54



 

1 

                   

 
 

1 Introduction 
This annual report describes the Deep Bay Improvement District (DBID) water system 
and summarizes the water quality and production data from January 1, 2022 - 
December 31, 2022.  

The DBID operates under a permit issued by Island Health (Vancouver Island Health 
Authority). 

 

2 Deep Bay Improvement District 
The Deep Bay Improvement District was incorporated in 1972 (originally as the Deep 
Bay Waterworks District).  The water source comes from 7 groundwater wells.  Water 
supply is stored in an above ground concrete reservoir and is not treated.  The DBID 
supplies water to 616 metered services. 

 

2.1 Groundwater Wells 
Water supply for the DBID system is provided by seven wells that are located north and 
south of the Island Highway for a distance of 700 meters on either side of Gainsberg 
Road.  Water from these wells is pumped directly into the distribution system.   

Currently Wells 4, 5, 6 & 8 are used for production supply.  Wells 1, 2 & 3 are on 
standby for emergency use only. 

 

DBID Well Data: 

Well 
Name 

Completion 
Depth 

Capacity 
Treated/ 

Untreated 
Year 

Drilled 

#1 15.9 m (52 ft) 4.8 l/s (65 IGPM) Untreated 1973 

#2 11.6 m (38 ft) 3.0 l/s (40 IGPM) Untreated 1973 

#3 16.4 m (53.7 ft) 5.7 l/s (75 IGPM) Untreated 1969 

#4 19.3 m (63.5 ft) 5.3 l/s (70 IGPM) Untreated 1977 

#5 21.5 m (70.5 ft) 10.0 l/s (130 IGPM) Untreated 1985 

#6 23.2 m (76 ft) 9.0 l/s (120 IGPM) Untreated 1990 

#7 26.1 m (85.6 ft) Not in production Untreated 1996 

#8 23 m (75.4 ft) 11.0 l/s (145 IGPM) Untreated 1997 

35 / 54



 

2 

                   

 
 

2.2 Observation Well 310 Bowser 
 
This is an observation well that is monitored by the provincial government to provide data 
showing the meter distance from the ground to the water level in the well.  The meter number 
increasing is indicative that the well water level is lower than the previous year, in other words 
the distance from the ground to the water.  Over the past 8 years the aquifer level has fluctuated 
from year-to-year, with the 2022 level being at a level comparable to 2015, 2016, and 2018. 
 
 

 
 
 

2.3 Reservoirs 
Water storage for the DBID system is provided by an above ground concrete reservoir 
located on the hillside south of the Island Highway.  This structure was built in 1975 and 
provides 545 cubic meters (120,000 Imperial Gallons) of storage.  This reservoir is 
divided in half by a vertical wall and both sides can operate independently. 

 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Series1 8.44 9.01 7.69 7.67 7.15 7.69 8.09 8.37 8.24 7.78

7

7.5

8

8.5

9

M
et

er
s 

fr
om

 W
at

er
 to

 G
ro

un
d 

Le
ve

l

July 1st Well Reading for each Year and Water Meter Level

Obervation Well 310 Bowser

36 / 54



 

3 

                   

 
 

2.4 Distribution System 
The DBID water distribution system serves an area of approximately 5 square 
kilometers.  The system has been constructed over a period of more than 45 years.  
The original lines were built before the District was established in 1972.  Approximately 
80% of the system was constructed using Asbestos Cement (AC) pipe and the 
remainder is Polyvinyl Chloride (PVC) pipe.  The system has 58 fire hydrants. 
 

3 Water Sampling and Testing Program 
Bacteriological monitoring is carried out weekly throughout the distribution system.  
There are 4 sample sites, as identified by Island Health.  At least two samples are taken 
each week, alternating between sample sites.  Samples are delivered to the Parksville 
Health Unit where they are sent on for testing. 

Full test results from bacteriological monitoring are included with this report as an 
attachment “Appendix A” at the back of this document.  These test results are also 
available on the VIHA website and there is a link to the test results on the DBID website 
under the Water Reports tab. 

 

4 Water Quality Inquiries and Complaints 
DBID receives water quality inquiries throughout the year.  There are several detailed 
engineering studies available for review on the DBID website under the 
Technical/Operational Documents tab and the Water Reports tab. 

 

5 Groundwater Production and Consumption 
 

The following graph shows the monthly water delivery figures (a measure of water 
pumped from the DBID wells) and quarterly water consumption numbers. 

 

DBID Water Pumping Statistics show the water pumped from the wells each month.  
This does not correlate directly to water consumption measured at the meters as it also 
includes all distribution system flushing, hydrant use and water used during routine 
repairs and maintenance. 

 

37 / 54



 

4 

                   

 
 

 

 
 
 
Quarterly Water Consumption reflects usage measured by the quarterly meter reads.  
Water consumption has been relatively steady during the past few years.  Summer 
water consumption is considerably higher than over seasons due to sprinkling and other 
summer activities. This consumption data is used to bill rate payers quarterly for water 
usage.    

 

0

1,000,000

2,000,000

3,000,000

4,000,000

5,000,000

6,000,000

7,000,000

8,000,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Im
pe

ria
l G

al
lo

ns

DBID Water Pumping Statistics 2018 - 2022
(figures from Operator's Monthly Reports)  

2018 2019

2020 2021

2022

38 / 54



 

5 

                   

 
 

 

 

6 Maintenance Program 
Production wells and the reservoir are inspected on a weekly basis to reduce or 
eliminate the risk of contamination and system failure.  All meters have dual check 
valves that are tested annually to prevent backflow into the system.  Isolation valves are 
exercised bi-annually and air valves are inspected annually.  Flushing program includes: 
flushing dead ends, particularly during periods of low demand.  Fire hydrants are 
inspected annually and serviced as required. 

7 Water System Projects 
 

7.1 2022 Completed Studies 
 There were no major studies completed in 2022.  An engineering detailed design 

for a new reservoir was started. 

 

7.2 2022 Completed Projects 
 

There was no major construction projects completed in 2022.   

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

1st Q 16,393 17,565 18,511 20,889 20,687

2nd Q 35,543 42,915 38,214 47,227 29,961

3rd Q 51,583 44,429 51,831 61,224 60,741

4th Q 18,978 19,670 22,891 23,909 22,075

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

70,000

Cu
bi

c 
M

et
er

s

Quarterly Consumption for Each Year

Quarterly Water  Consumption
(1st, 2nd, 3rd and 4th quarter bars for each year)

39 / 54



 

6 

                   

 
 

8 Emergency Response Plan 
The Emergency Response Plan (ERP) was reviewed and updated in 2021.  The DBID 
ERP includes: 

 Emergency Phone Contact Lists 

o Personnel,  
o Government Agencies,  
o Contractors/Repair Services,  
o Technical Resources,  
o Parts Supply,  
o Bulk Water Suppliers, and 
o Media Contacts. 

 Emergency Procedures 

o Unsafe Water Guidelines (Contamination of Well Space/s),  
o Loss of Source, Water Shortage, Broken Water Main, Pump Failure, 

Power Failures,  
o Flooding, Backflow or Back Siphonage,  
o Earthquake, and 
o Fire. 

 Maps of System & Electrical Schematics 

9 Report Distribution 
Residents are notified by direct mail-out in the Pipeline Newsletter each year regarding 
the availability of this report.  Annual Water System reports are available from the DBID 
office and on the website at www.dbid.ca under "Water Quality Reports".  

A copy of this report is submitted to Island Health. 

40 / 54



"Appendix A"     Deep Bay Improvement District Water Testing Results - 2022

Date Location Coliform E. Coli

19-Dec-2022  4503 Mapleguard Sampling Port on Water Meter on Road, Sample Station QRWRT  QRWRT 

19-Dec-2022  5532 Deep Bay Drive Tap on Left Side of Trailer, Deep Bay BC  QRWRT  QRWRT 

12-Dec-2022  4529 Thompson Clarke East,   LT1  LT1 

12-Dec-2022  Deep Bay Water System Fire Hall, Deep Bay Fire Hall, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

05-Dec-2022  4503 Mapleguard Sampling Port on Water Meter on Road, Sample Station LT1  LT1 

05-Dec-2022  5532 Deep Bay Drive Tap on Left Side of Trailer, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

28-Nov-2022  4529 Thompson Clarke East,   LT1  LT1 

28-Nov-2022  Deep Bay Water System Fire Hall, Deep Bay Fire Hall, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

21-Nov-2022  4503 Mapleguard Sampling Port on Water Meter on Road, Sample Station LT1  LT1 

21-Nov-2022  5532 Deep Bay Drive Tap on Left Side of Trailer, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

14-Nov-2022  4529 Thompson Clarke East,   LT1  LT1 

14-Nov-2022  Deep Bay Water System Fire Hall, Deep Bay Fire Hall, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

07-Nov-2022  4503 Mapleguard Sampling Port on Water Meter on Road, Sample Station LT1  LT1 

07-Nov-2022  5532 Deep Bay Drive Tap on Left Side of Trailer, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

31-Oct-2022  4529 Thompson Clarke East,   LT1  LT1 

31-Oct-2022  Deep Bay Water System Fire Hall, Deep Bay Fire Hall, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

24-Oct-2022  4503 Mapleguard Sampling Port on Water Meter on Road, Sample Station LT1  LT1 

24-Oct-2022  5532 Deep Bay Drive Tap on Left Side of Trailer, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

17-Oct-2022  4529 Thompson Clarke East,   LT1  LT1 

17-Oct-2022  Deep Bay Water System Fire Hall, Deep Bay Fire Hall, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

11-Oct-2022  4503 Mapleguard Sampling Port on Water Meter on Road, Sample Station LT1  LT1 

11-Oct-2022  5532 Deep Bay Drive Tap on Left Side of Trailer, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

03-Oct-2022  4529 Thompson Clarke East,   LT1  LT1 

03-Oct-2022  Deep Bay Water System Fire Hall, Deep Bay Fire Hall, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

26-Sep-2022  4503 Mapleguard Sampling Port on Water Meter on Road, Sample Station LT1  LT1 

26-Sep-2022  5532 Deep Bay Drive Tap on Left Side of Trailer, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

20-Sep-2022  4529 Thompson Clarke East,   LT1  LT1 

20-Sep-2022  Deep Bay Water System Fire Hall, Deep Bay Fire Hall, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

12-Sep-2022  4503 Mapleguard Sampling Port on Water Meter on Road, Sample Station LT1  LT1 

12-Sep-2022  5532 Deep Bay Drive Tap on Left Side of Trailer, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

06-Sep-2022  4529 Thompson Clarke East,   LT1  LT1 

06-Sep-2022  Deep Bay Water System Fire Hall, Deep Bay Fire Hall, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

29-Aug-2022  4503 Mapleguard Sampling Port on Water Meter on Road, Sample Station LT1  LT1 

29-Aug-2022  5532 Deep Bay Drive Tap on Left Side of Trailer, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

22-Aug-2022  4529 Thompson Clarke East,   LT1  LT1 

41 / 54



"Appendix A"     Deep Bay Improvement District Water Testing Results - 2022

Date Location Coliform E. Coli

22-Aug-2022  Deep Bay Water System Fire Hall, Deep Bay Fire Hall, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

15-Aug-2022  4503 Mapleguard Sampling Port on Water Meter on Road, Sample Station LT1  LT1 

15-Aug-2022  5532 Deep Bay Drive Tap on Left Side of Trailer, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

08-Aug-2022  4529 Thompson Clarke East,   LT1  LT1 

08-Aug-2022  Deep Bay Water System Fire Hall, Deep Bay Fire Hall, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

02-Aug-2022  4503 Mapleguard Sampling Port on Water Meter on Road, Sample Station LT1  LT1 

02-Aug-2022  5532 Deep Bay Drive Tap on Left Side of Trailer, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

25-Jul-2022  4529 Thompson Clarke East,   LT1  LT1 

25-Jul-2022  Deep Bay Water System Fire Hall, Deep Bay Fire Hall, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

18-Jul-2022  4503 Mapleguard Sampling Port on Water Meter on Road, Sample Station LT1  LT1 

18-Jul-2022  5532 Deep Bay Drive Tap on Left Side of Trailer, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

11-Jul-2022  4529 Thompson Clarke East,   LT1  LT1 

11-Jul-2022  Deep Bay Water System Fire Hall, Deep Bay Fire Hall, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

04-Jul-2022  4503 Mapleguard Sampling Port on Water Meter on Road, Sample Station LT1  LT1 

04-Jul-2022  5532 Deep Bay Drive Tap on Left Side of Trailer, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

27-Jun-2022  4529 Thompson Clarke East,   LT1  LT1 

27-Jun-2022  Deep Bay Water System Fire Hall, Deep Bay Fire Hall, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

20-Jun-2022  5532 Deep Bay Drive Tap on Left Side of Trailer, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

13-Jun-2022  4529 Thompson Clarke East,   LT1  LT1 

13-Jun-2022  Deep Bay Water System Fire Hall, Deep Bay Fire Hall, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

06-Jun-2022  5532 Deep Bay Drive Tap on Left Side of Trailer, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

30-May-2022  4529 Thompson Clarke East,   LT1  LT1 

30-May-2022  Deep Bay Water System Fire Hall, Deep Bay Fire Hall, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

16-May-2022  4503 Mapleguard Sampling Port on Water Meter on Road, Sample Station LT1  LT1 

16-May-2022  5532 Deep Bay Drive Tap on Left Side of Trailer, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

09-May-2022  4503 Mapleguard Sampling Port on Water Meter on Road, Sample Station LT1  LT1 

09-May-2022  5532 Deep Bay Drive Tap on Left Side of Trailer, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

02-May-2022  4647 Thompson Clarke Drive East Deep Bay, Deep Bay WWD, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

02-May-2022  Deep Bay Water System Fire Hall, Deep Bay Fire Hall, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

25-Apr-2022  4503 Mapleguard Sampling Port on Water Meter on Road, Sample Station LT1  LT1 

25-Apr-2022  5532 Deep Bay Drive Tap on Left Side of Trailer, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

19-Apr-2022  4647 Thompson Clarke Drive East Deep Bay, Deep Bay WWD, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

19-Apr-2022  Deep Bay Water System Fire Hall, Deep Bay Fire Hall, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

11-Apr-2022  4503 Mapleguard Sampling Port on Water Meter on Road, Sample Station QRWRT  QRWRT 

11-Apr-2022  5532 Deep Bay Drive Tap on Left Side of Trailer, Deep Bay BC  REJCT DELAY3  REJCT DELAY3 

42 / 54



"Appendix A"     Deep Bay Improvement District Water Testing Results - 2022

Date Location Coliform E. Coli

04-Apr-2022  4647 Thompson Clarke Drive East Deep Bay, Deep Bay WWD, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

04-Apr-2022  Deep Bay Water System Fire Hall, Deep Bay Fire Hall, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

28-Mar-2022  4503 Mapleguard Sampling Port on Water Meter on Road, Sample Station LT1  LT1 

28-Mar-2022  Mapleguard Point (Ocean), Deep Bay  LT1  LT1 

21-Mar-2022  4647 Thompson Clarke Drive East Deep Bay, Deep Bay WWD, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

21-Mar-2022  Deep Bay Water System Fire Hall, Deep Bay Fire Hall, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

14-Mar-2022  4503 Mapleguard Sampling Port on Water Meter on Road, Sample Station LT1  LT1 

14-Mar-2022  Deep Bay Water Works AUDIT, Island Highway & Gainsburg  LT1  LT1 

07-Mar-2022  4647 Thompson Clarke Drive East Deep Bay, Deep Bay WWD, Deep Bay BC  QRWRT  QRWRT 

07-Mar-2022  Deep Bay Water System Fire Hall, Deep Bay Fire Hall, Deep Bay BC  QRWRT  QRWRT 

28-Feb-2022  4503 Mapleguard Sampling Port on Water Meter on Road, Sample Station LT1  LT1 

28-Feb-2022  Mapleguard Point (Ocean), Deep Bay  LT1  LT1 

22-Feb-2022  4647 Thompson Clarke Drive East Deep Bay, Deep Bay WWD, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

22-Feb-2022  Deep Bay Water System Fire Hall, Deep Bay Fire Hall, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

14-Feb-2022  4503 Mapleguard Sampling Port on Water Meter on Road, Sample Station LT1  LT1 

14-Feb-2022  5532 Deep Bay Drive Tap on Left Side of Trailer, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

07-Feb-2022  4647 Thompson Clarke Drive East Deep Bay, Deep Bay WWD, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

07-Feb-2022  Deep Bay Water System Fire Hall, Deep Bay Fire Hall, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

31-Jan-2022  4503 Mapleguard Sampling Port on Water Meter on Road, Sample Station LT1  LT1 

31-Jan-2022  5532 Deep Bay Drive Tap on Left Side of Trailer, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

24-Jan-2022  4647 Thompson Clarke Drive East Deep Bay, Deep Bay WWD, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

24-Jan-2022  Deep Bay Water System Fire Hall, Deep Bay Fire Hall, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

17-Jan-2022  4503 Mapleguard Sampling Port on Water Meter on Road, Sample Station LT1  LT1 

17-Jan-2022  5532 Deep Bay Drive Tap on Left Side of Trailer, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

10-Jan-2022  4647 Thompson Clarke Drive East Deep Bay, Deep Bay WWD, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

10-Jan-2022  Deep Bay Water System Fire Hall, Deep Bay Fire Hall, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

04-Jan-2022  5532 Deep Bay Drive Tap on Left Side of Trailer, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

43 / 54



5031 Mountainview Road  Phone/Fax: 250-757-9312 
Bowser, BC   V0R 1G0  www.dbid.ca 

 
 
 
 

DEEP BAY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
 
 

ANNUAL WATER SYSTEM  
REPORT 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

44 / 54



 

1 

                   

 
 

1 Introduction 
This annual report describes the Deep Bay Improvement District (DBID) water system 
and summarizes the water quality and production data from January 1, 2023 - 
December 31, 2023.  This report also includes a summary of inquiries and complaints; 
completed and proposed maintenance activities; and the Emergency Response Plan. 

The DBID operates under a permit issued by Island Health (Vancouver Island Health 
Authority). 

 

2 Deep Bay Improvement District 
The Deep Bay Improvement District was incorporated in 1972 (originally as the Deep 
Bay Waterworks District).  The water source comes from 7 groundwater wells.  Water 
supply is stored in an above ground concrete reservoir and is not treated.  The DBID 
supplies water to 616 metered services. 

 

2.1 Groundwater Wells 
Water supply for the DBID system is provided by seven wells that are located north and 
south of the Island Highway for a distance of 700 meters on either side of Gainsberg 
Road.  Water from these wells is pumped directly into the distribution system.   

Currently Wells 4, 5, 6 & 8 are used for production supply.  Wells 1, 2 & 3 are on 
standby for emergency use only. 

 

DBID Well Data: 

Well 
Name 

Completion 
Depth 

Capacity 
Treated/ 

Untreated 
Year 

Drilled 

#1 15.9 m (52 ft) 4.8 l/s (65 IGPM) Untreated 1973 

#2 11.6 m (38 ft) 3.0 l/s (40 IGPM) Untreated 1973 

#3 16.4 m (53.7 ft) 5.7 l/s (75 IGPM) Untreated 1969 

#4 19.3 m (63.5 ft) 5.3 l/s (70 IGPM) Untreated 1977 

#5 21.5 m (70.5 ft) 10.0 l/s (130 IGPM) Untreated 1985 

#6 23.2 m (76 ft) 9.0 l/s (120 IGPM) Untreated 1990 

#7 26.1 m (85.6 ft) Not in production Untreated 1996 

#8 23 m (75.4 ft) 11.0 l/s (145 IGPM) Untreated 1997 

45 / 54



 

2 

                   

 
 

2.2 Observation Well 310 Bowser 
 
This is an observation well that is monitored by the provincial government to provide data 
showing the meter distance from the ground to the water level in the well.  The meter number 
increasing is indicative that the well water level is lower than the previous year, in other words 
the distance from the ground to the water.  This also indicates that the aquifer water level is 
dropping.  Over the past seven years the aquifer is generally declining.  The water level reflected 
a 7.15 reading in 2017 and 8.98 reading in 2023. 
 
 

 

 

2.3 Reservoirs 
Water storage for the DBID system is provided by an above ground concrete reservoir 
located on the hillside south of the Island Highway.  This structure was built in 1975 and 
provides 545 cubic meters (120,000 Imperial Gallons) of storage.  This reservoir is 
divided in half by a vertical wall and both sides can operate independently. 

 

Herold Engineering has been retained to undertake a Water Tank Condition 
Assessment.  This report is intended to provide an assessment of the water tank and 
the next steps in terms of remedial and/or replacement options.  It is expected that this 
report will be completed in early 2024. 

 

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Series1 9.01 7.69 7.67 7.15 7.69 8.09 8.37 8.24 7.78 8.98

7

7.5

8

8.5

9

M
et

er
s 

fr
om

 W
at

er
 to

 G
ro

un
d 

Le
ve

l

July 1st Well Reading for each Year and Water Meter Level

Obervation Well 310 Bowser

46 / 54



 

3 

                   

 
 

 

2.4 Distribution System 
The DBID water distribution system serves an area of approximately 5 square 
kilometers.  The system has been constructed over a period of more than 45 years.  
The original lines were built before the District was established in 1972.  Approximately 
80% of the system was constructed using Asbestos Cement (AC) pipe and the 
remainder is Polyvinyl Chloride (PVC) pipe.  The system has 58 fire hydrants. 
 
The Improvement District retained McElhanney Engineering to complete an Asbestos 
Cement Pipe Replacement Report that was completed in June 2023. The objective of 
this report was to assist the District in understanding the associated risks of operating 
aging AC watermain infrastructure, while meeting acceptable levels of service and 
regulatory requirements. Also, to provide guidance on prioritization of the replacement 
of the AC watermain piping. 
 
This report identified the Thompson Clarke East with the highest priority replacement 
rating.  This rating and inherent risk contributed to the Board deciding to proceed with 
the replacement of the pipeline in the 2024 budget.  The cost associated with this 
project was estimated at $587,000 based on 2023 dollars. 
 

3 Water Sampling and Testing Program 
Bacteriological monitoring is carried out weekly throughout the distribution system.  
There are 4 sample sites, as identified by Island Health.  At least two samples are taken 
each week, alternating between sample sites.  Samples are delivered to the Parksville 
Health Unit where they are sent on for testing. 

Full test results from bacteriological monitoring are included with this report as an 
attachment “Appendix A” at the back of this document.  These test results are also 
available on the VIHA website and there is a link to the test results on the DBID website 
under the Water Reports tab. 

 

4 Water Quality Inquiries and Complaints 
DBID receives water quality inquiries throughout the year.  There are several detailed 
engineering studies available for review on the DBID website under the 
Technical/Operational Documents tab and the Water Reports tab. 

 

 

47 / 54



 

4 

                   

 
 

5 Groundwater Production and Consumption 
 

The following graph shows the monthly water delivery figures (a measure of water 
pumped from the DBID wells) and quarterly water consumption numbers. 

 

 DBID Water Pumping Statistics show the water pumped from the wells each month.  
This does not correlate directly to water consumption measured at the meters as it also 
includes all distribution system flushing, hydrant use and water used during routine 
repairs and maintenance. 

 

 

 
 
 

0

1,000,000

2,000,000

3,000,000

4,000,000

5,000,000

6,000,000

7,000,000

8,000,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Im
pe

ria
l G

al
lo

ns

DBID Water Pumping Statistics 2019 - 2023
(figures from Operator's Monthly Reports)  

2019 2020

2021 2022

2023

48 / 54



 

5 

                   

 
 

Quarterly Water Consumption reflects usage measured by the quarterly meter reads.  
Water consumption has decreased slowly but steadily over the last few years, except 
for higher usage during the Spring of 2023.  Mandatory watering restrictions have not 
been implemented but all water users are asked to continue to use our resources 
responsibly.     

 

 

 

6 Maintenance Program 
Production wells and the reservoir are inspected on a weekly basis to reduce or 
eliminate the risk of contamination and system failure.  All meters have dual check 
valves that are tested annually to prevent backflow into the system.  Isolation valves are 
exercised bi-annually and air valves are inspected annually.  Flushing program includes: 
flushing dead ends, particularly during periods of low demand.  Fire hydrants are 
inspected and serviced as required annually or more frequently if required. 

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

1st Q 17,565 18,511 20,889 20,687 19,013

2nd Q 42,915 38,214 47,227 29,961 49,026

3rd Q 44,429 51,831 61,224 60,741 52,555

4th Q 19,670 22,891 23,909 22,075 18,805

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

70,000

Cu
bi

c 
M

et
er

s

Quarterly Consumption for Each Year

Quarterly Water  Consumption
(1st, 2nd, 3rd and 4th quarter bars for each year)

49 / 54



 

6 

                   

 
 

7 Water System Projects 
 

7.1 2023 Completed Studies 
In 2023, DBID initiated several water studies and information that has been posted to 
the DBID website under the Technical/Operational Documents tab.  These 2023 
documents are as follows: 

 Reservoir and Disinfection Issues Questions and Answers, MSR Solutions, 
November 2023 

 Reservoir Study, MSR Solutions, October 2023 
 Water System Evaluation Report, McElhanney Engineering, June 2023 
 Asbestos Cement Pipe Replacement Report, McElhanney Engineering, June 

2023 

 

7.2 2023 Completed Projects 
 

There was no major construction projects completed in 2023.  An engineering detailed 
design for potential construction of a new reservoir has been completed. 

8 Emergency Response Plan 
The Emergency Response Plan (ERP) was reviewed and updated in 2021.  The DBID 
ERP includes: 

 Emergency Phone Contact Lists 

o Personnel,  
o Government Agencies,  
o Contractors/Repair Services,  
o Technical Resources,  
o Parts Supply,  
o Bulk Water Suppliers, and 
o Media Contacts. 

 Emergency Procedures 

o Unsafe Water Guidelines (Contamination of Well Space/s),  
o Loss of Source, Water Shortage, Broken Water Main, Pump Failure, 

Power Failures,  
o Flooding, Backflow or Back Siphonage,  
o Earthquake, and 
o Fire. 

50 / 54



 

7 

                   

 
 

 Maps of System & Electrical Schematics 

9 Report Distribution 
Residents are notified by direct mail-out in the Pipeline Newsletter each year regarding 
the availability of this report.  Annual Water System reports are available from the DBID 
office and on the website at www.dbid.ca under "Water Quality Reports".  

A copy of this report is submitted to Island Health. 

51 / 54



"Appendix A"     Deep Bay Improvement District Water Testing Results - 2023

Date Location Coliform E. Coli

18-Dec-2023  4529 Thompson Clarke East,   LT1  LT1 

18-Dec-2023  Deep Bay Water System Fire Hall, Deep Bay Fire Hall, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

11-Dec-2023  4503 Mapleguard Sampling Port on Water Meter on Road, Sample Station LT1  LT1 

11-Dec-2023  5532 Deep Bay Drive Tap on Left Side of Trailer, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

04-Dec-2023  4529 Thompson Clarke East,   LT1  LT1 

04-Dec-2023  Deep Bay Water System Fire Hall, Deep Bay Fire Hall, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

28-Nov-2023  4503 Mapleguard Sampling Port on Water Meter on Road, Sample Station LT1  LT1 

28-Nov-2023  5532 Deep Bay Drive Tap on Left Side of Trailer, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

20-Nov-2023  4529 Thompson Clarke East,   LT1  LT1 

20-Nov-2023  Deep Bay Water System Fire Hall, Deep Bay Fire Hall, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

14-Nov-2023  4503 Mapleguard Sampling Port on Water Meter on Road, Sample Station LT1  LT1 

14-Nov-2023  5532 Deep Bay Drive Tap on Left Side of Trailer, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

06-Nov-2023  4529 Thompson Clarke East,   LT1  LT1 

06-Nov-2023  Deep Bay Water System Fire Hall, Deep Bay Fire Hall, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

30-Oct-2023  4503 Mapleguard Sampling Port on Water Meter on Road, Sample Station LT1  LT1 

30-Oct-2023  5532 Deep Bay Drive Tap on Left Side of Trailer, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

23-Oct-2023  4529 Thompson Clarke East,   LT1  LT1 

23-Oct-2023  Deep Bay Water System Fire Hall, Deep Bay Fire Hall, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

17-Oct-2023  Deep Bay Water System Fire Hall, Deep Bay Fire Hall, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

16-Oct-2023  4503 Mapleguard Sampling Port on Water Meter on Road, Sample Station LT1  LT1 

16-Oct-2023  5532 Deep Bay Drive Tap on Left Side of Trailer, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

10-Oct-2023  4529 Thompson Clarke East,   LT1  LT1 

10-Oct-2023  Deep Bay Water System Fire Hall, Deep Bay Fire Hall, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

03-Oct-2023  4503 Mapleguard Sampling Port on Water Meter on Road, Sample Station LT1  LT1 

03-Oct-2023  5532 Deep Bay Drive Tap on Left Side of Trailer, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

25-Sep-2023  4529 Thompson Clarke East,   LT1  LT1 

25-Sep-2023  Deep Bay Water System Fire Hall, Deep Bay Fire Hall, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

18-Sep-2023  4503 Mapleguard Sampling Port on Water Meter on Road, Sample Station LT1  LT1 

18-Sep-2023  5532 Deep Bay Drive Tap on Left Side of Trailer, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

18-Sep-2023  Deep Bay ID Concrete Reservoir - Lower, Storage Reservoir  LT1  LT1 

18-Sep-2023  Deep Bay ID Concrete Reservoir - Upper, Storage - Reservoir  LT1  LT1 

11-Sep-2023  4529 Thompson Clarke East,   LT1  LT1 

11-Sep-2023  Deep Bay ID Concrete Reservoir - Lower, Storage Reservoir  ESTCT 3 ESTHCD  LT1 

11-Sep-2023  Deep Bay ID Concrete Reservoir - Upper, Storage - Reservoir  ESTCT 34 ESTHCD  LT1 

11-Sep-2023  Deep Bay Water System Fire Hall, Deep Bay Fire Hall, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

05-Sep-2023  4503 Mapleguard Sampling Port on Water Meter on Road, Sample Station LT1  LT1 

05-Sep-2023  5532 Deep Bay Drive Tap on Left Side of Trailer, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

52 / 54



"Appendix A"     Deep Bay Improvement District Water Testing Results - 2023

Date Location Coliform E. Coli

28-Aug-2023  4529 Thompson Clarke East,   LT1  LT1 

28-Aug-2023  Deep Bay Water System Fire Hall, Deep Bay Fire Hall, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

21-Aug-2023  4503 Mapleguard Sampling Port on Water Meter on Road, Sample Station LT1  LT1 

21-Aug-2023  5532 Deep Bay Drive Tap on Left Side of Trailer, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

14-Aug-2023  4529 Thompson Clarke East,   LT1  LT1 

14-Aug-2023  Deep Bay Water System Fire Hall, Deep Bay Fire Hall, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

08-Aug-2023  4503 Mapleguard Sampling Port on Water Meter on Road, Sample Station LT1  LT1 

08-Aug-2023  5532 Deep Bay Drive Tap on Left Side of Trailer, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

31-Jul-2023  4529 Thompson Clarke East,   LT1  LT1 

31-Jul-2023  Deep Bay Water System Fire Hall, Deep Bay Fire Hall, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

24-Jul-2023  4503 Mapleguard Sampling Port on Water Meter on Road, Sample Station LT1  LT1 

24-Jul-2023  5532 Deep Bay Drive Tap on Left Side of Trailer, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

17-Jul-2023  4529 Thompson Clarke East,   LT1  LT1 

17-Jul-2023  Deep Bay Water System Fire Hall, Deep Bay Fire Hall, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

10-Jul-2023  4503 Mapleguard Sampling Port on Water Meter on Road, Sample Station LT1  LT1 

10-Jul-2023  5532 Deep Bay Drive Tap on Left Side of Trailer, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

04-Jul-2023  4529 Thompson Clarke East,   LT1  LT1 

04-Jul-2023  Deep Bay Water System Fire Hall, Deep Bay Fire Hall, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

26-Jun-2023  4503 Mapleguard Sampling Port on Water Meter on Road, Sample Station LT1  LT1 

26-Jun-2023  5532 Deep Bay Drive Tap on Left Side of Trailer, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

19-Jun-2023  4529 Thompson Clarke East,   LT1  LT1 

19-Jun-2023  Deep Bay Water System Fire Hall, Deep Bay Fire Hall, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

12-Jun-2023  4503 Mapleguard Sampling Port on Water Meter on Road, Sample Station LT1  LT1 

12-Jun-2023  5532 Deep Bay Drive Tap on Left Side of Trailer, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

05-Jun-2023  4529 Thompson Clarke East,   LT1  LT1 

05-Jun-2023  Deep Bay Water System Fire Hall, Deep Bay Fire Hall, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

29-May-2023  4503 Mapleguard Sampling Port on Water Meter on Road, Sample Station LT1  LT1 

29-May-2023  5532 Deep Bay Drive Tap on Left Side of Trailer, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

23-May-2023  4529 Thompson Clarke East,   LT1  LT1 

23-May-2023  Deep Bay Water System Fire Hall, Deep Bay Fire Hall, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

15-May-2023  4503 Mapleguard Sampling Port on Water Meter on Road, Sample Station LT1  LT1 

15-May-2023  5532 Deep Bay Drive Tap on Left Side of Trailer, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

08-May-2023  4529 Thompson Clarke East,   LT1  LT1 

08-May-2023  Deep Bay Water System Fire Hall, Deep Bay Fire Hall, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

01-May-2023  4503 Mapleguard Sampling Port on Water Meter on Road, Sample Station LT1  LT1 

01-May-2023  5532 Deep Bay Drive Tap on Left Side of Trailer, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

24-Apr-2023  4529 Thompson Clarke East,   LT1  LT1 

53 / 54



"Appendix A"     Deep Bay Improvement District Water Testing Results - 2023

Date Location Coliform E. Coli

24-Apr-2023  Deep Bay Water System Fire Hall, Deep Bay Fire Hall, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

17-Apr-2023  4503 Mapleguard Sampling Port on Water Meter on Road, Sample Station LT1  LT1 

17-Apr-2023  5532 Deep Bay Drive Tap on Left Side of Trailer, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

11-Apr-2023  4529 Thompson Clarke East,   LT1  LT1 

11-Apr-2023  Deep Bay Water System Fire Hall, Deep Bay Fire Hall, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

03-Apr-2023  4503 Mapleguard Sampling Port on Water Meter on Road, Sample Station LT1  LT1 

03-Apr-2023  5532 Deep Bay Drive Tap on Left Side of Trailer, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

27-Mar-2023  4529 Thompson Clarke East,   LT1  LT1 

27-Mar-2023  Deep Bay Water System Fire Hall, Deep Bay Fire Hall, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

20-Mar-2023  4503 Mapleguard Sampling Port on Water Meter on Road, Sample Station LT1  LT1 

20-Mar-2023  5532 Deep Bay Drive Tap on Left Side of Trailer, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

13-Mar-2023  4529 Thompson Clarke East,   LT1  LT1 

13-Mar-2023  Deep Bay Water System Fire Hall, Deep Bay Fire Hall, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

06-Mar-2023  4503 Mapleguard Sampling Port on Water Meter on Road, Sample Station LT1  LT1 

06-Mar-2023  5532 Deep Bay Drive Tap on Left Side of Trailer, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

27-Feb-2023  4503 Mapleguard Sampling Port on Water Meter on Road, Sample Station LT1  LT1 

27-Feb-2023  4529 Thompson Clarke East,   LT1  LT1 

27-Feb-2023  Deep Bay Water System Fire Hall, Deep Bay Fire Hall, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

21-Feb-2023  4503 Mapleguard Sampling Port on Water Meter on Road, Sample Station 4 LT1 

21-Feb-2023  5532 Deep Bay Drive Tap on Left Side of Trailer, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

21-Feb-2023  Deep Bay Water System Fire Hall, Deep Bay Fire Hall, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

13-Feb-2023  4529 Thompson Clarke East,   LT1  LT1 

13-Feb-2023  Deep Bay Water System Fire Hall, Deep Bay Fire Hall, Deep Bay BC  10  LT1 

06-Feb-2023  4503 Mapleguard Sampling Port on Water Meter on Road, Sample Station LT1  LT1 

06-Feb-2023  5532 Deep Bay Drive Tap on Left Side of Trailer, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

30-Jan-2023  4529 Thompson Clarke East,   LT1  LT1 

30-Jan-2023  Deep Bay Water System Fire Hall, Deep Bay Fire Hall, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

23-Jan-2023  4503 Mapleguard Sampling Port on Water Meter on Road, Sample Station LT1  LT1 

23-Jan-2023  5532 Deep Bay Drive Tap on Left Side of Trailer, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

16-Jan-2023  4529 Thompson Clarke East,   LT1  LT1 

16-Jan-2023  Deep Bay Water System Fire Hall, Deep Bay Fire Hall, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

09-Jan-2023  4503 Mapleguard Sampling Port on Water Meter on Road, Sample Station LT1  LT1 

09-Jan-2023  5532 Deep Bay Drive Tap on Left Side of Trailer, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

03-Jan-2023  4529 Thompson Clarke East,   LT1  LT1 

03-Jan-2023  Deep Bay Water System Fire Hall, Deep Bay Fire Hall, Deep Bay BC  LT1  LT1 

54 / 54


